
Agenda for the Regular Meeting of Council for April 28, 2015 Page 1 of 2 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF COBALT 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL 

COBALT COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

TUESDAY, April 28, 2015, 6:30pm 

AGENDA 
  

 

1. Adoption of the Agenda 
 a) Adoption of the Agenda dated April 28, 2015      Res 15-079 

 

2. Declaration of Conflict or Pecuniary Interest 
 

3. Adoption of the Minutes 
a) Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council of April 7, 2015     Res 15-080 
b) Minutes of the Special Meeting of Council of April 21, 2015    Res 15-081 

    

4. Business Arising From The Minutes 
 

5. Presentations and Delegations 
 a) INVITED PRESENTATION: Energy East Pipeline      Res 15-082 

 

6. Reports, Resolutions and Discussion Items presented by Council Committees 

  

 6.1  Mayor’s Update 
 a) Graduation Awards         Res 15-083 

 

 6.2  Finance and Public Safety 
 a) Budget update and next meeting 

b) Rent Increase for Fraser and Trailer Park      Res 15-084 

 

6.3 Public Works  
a) Sewer and Waste Management Policy Under Review 

 

6.4 Culture, Tourism and Heritage 
 

6.5 Economic Development and Property Management 
 

6.6  Housing and Social Services 
 

 6.7   Festivals and Recreation 
 a) Recreation Committee Appointments       Res 15-085 

 

6.8   Outside Boards, Committees and Commissions 
   

7. Schedule of Accounts 
 a) Motion to pay accounts as per attached schedules 15-09    Res 15-086 

 

8. Correspondence for Council Comment                 Res 15-087 
April 17/15 Cobalt Mining Museum Silver Bar Factsheet 15-58 

 

9. Correspondence for Council Information       Res 15-088 

 
April 1/15 Lisa Thompson, MPP Bill 66: Great Lakes Protection Act, 2015 15-50 



Agenda for the Regular Meeting of Council for April 28, 2015 Page 2 of 2 

April 1/15 Michel Chan, Minister of 
Citizenship, Immigration and 
International Trade 

Lincoln M. Alexander Award 2015 15-51 

April 1/15 CUPE Collective Agreement Renewal  15-52 

April 7/15 Monika Tobler - Hydro One Forestry Maintenance Program 15-53 

April 7/15 Ontario Provincial Police Launch of OPP text with 9-1-1 Service 15-54 

April 8/15 Sylvia Jones, MPP Bill 36 Respecting Private Property Act 15-55 

April 9/15 Clayton Seymour, Chief 
Building Official 

2015 Building Permits 15-56 

April 17/15 Marie Gutscher Bikers Reunion, Early Bird Ride 15-57 

April 20/15 Marie Gutscher Bikers Reunion – Early Bird Ride 15-59 

April  21/15 Cobalt Mining Museum Financial Statement 2015 15-60 

April 24/15 Animal Control Officer Reportable Occurrence Tracking 15-61 
 

         

10. By-laws 
a) By-Law 2015-011: Media Policy       Res 15-089 

b) By-Law 2015-012: Extension Agreement      Res 15-090 
 

11. On-going Business 
a) Co-Tem Proposal         Res 15-091 

 

12. Notice of Motion 
 

13. Closed Session          

a)  Resolution to proceed in closed session      Res 15-092  
 
(2)(b)  Personal matter about an identifiable individual, including municipal or 
local board employees - Senior of the Year Award Recommendation from 
Award’s Committee 

 
(2)(d)  Labour relations - Negotiations committee 
 

b)  Resolution to return to open session        Res 15-093 
 

14. Other Business 
 a) Senior of the Year Award        Res 15-094 

 b) Appointment of Negotiations Committee      Res 15-095 

 
 

15. Confirmation By-Law         Res 15-096

       

16. Adjournment           Res 15-097
         



Minutes for the Regular Meeting of Council on April 7, 2015 Page 1 of 6 

  THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF COBALT  

 

REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL 

  COBALT COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

TUESDAY, APRIL 7, 2015 

MINUTES 

  
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING HELD TUESDAY,  APRIL 7, 2015 COMMENCING AT 

6:30 PM. 

 

PRESENT:  

T. Sartoretto  Mayor 

S. Nielsen  Councillor  

P. Wuest  Councillor 

R. Schwartz  Councillor 

G. Othmer  Councillor 

M. Harrison  Councillor 

G. Bigelow  Councillor 

 

STAFF:            Candice Bedard, CAO, Victor Legault, Public Works Director, Dale Taylor, Deputy 

Clerk Treasurer 

   

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm by Mayor T. Sartoretto   

 

 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

15-059 
MOVED BY:   M. Harrison  
SECONDED BY:   R. Schwartz 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The regular council meeting Agenda dated April 7, 2015 be adopted as presented. 
           CARRIED 
 

DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OR PECUNIARY INTEREST 

None. 
 
 

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES 

15-060 
MOVED BY:    R. Schwartz 
SECONDED BY:    M. Harrison 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  The Minutes of the Regular meeting of Council held on March 17, 2015 be adopted 
as presented. 
           CARRIED 

 

BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 

None 

 

PRESENTATIONS AND DELEGATIONS 

None. 
 

REPORTS, RESOLUTIONS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS PRESENTED BY COUNCIL COMMITTEES 



Minutes for the Regular Meeting of Council on April 7, 2015 Page 2 of 6 

 

6.1 Mayor’s Update 

 a)  Breach of Confidentiality 
The Mayor explained that she has received a written complaint alleging a breach of confidentiality by a 
councillor regarding a closed session discussion of council.  This complaint will be investigated and a report will 
be provided to council. 
 
b) The Mayor reported that she was working toward a media policy for council consideration as  well as 
working with the recreation committee on the recreation survey. 

 

6.2 Finance and Public Safety 

a) Administrative Report 2015-03: Arena Review Committee Report 
15-061 
MOVED BY:    R. Schwartz 
SECONDED BY:    M. Harrison 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  Council acknowledge receipt of Administrative Report 2015-03 on the Summary of 
Findings from the Arena Review Committee. 
           CARRIED 
Councillor Schwartz asked if alternative funding options had been exhausted.  Councillor Nielsen said funding 
was available, but it was clarified that funding options existed only for capital projects.  Councillor Nielsen 
commented that the report did not include the benefits of the facility.  Mayor Sartoretto explained that the 
committee was not asked to report on the benefits, but rather on the financial aspects of the operations 
shortfall.   Councillor Bigelow highlighted the issue of the lack of usage by Cobalt residents. 
 

b) Public Meeting – Arena Review 
15-062 
MOVED BY:    R. Schwartz 
SECONDED BY:    M. Harrison 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  Council approves April 21, 2015 at 6:30pm as the date for the Public Consultation 
on the Arena Review; AND FURTHER THAT: Staff be directed to provide due notice to the public. 
           CARRIED 
It was clarified that anyone who attended the meeting would be able to make comments and/or ask questions. 
 

6.3 Public Works and Safety 

a)  Water Treat Plant – Annual Compliance Report & Municipal Summary Report  
15-063 
MOVED BY:    G. Bigelow 
SECONDED BY:    P. Wuest 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  Council acknowledge receipt of the 2014 Municipal Summary and Annual 
Compliance Reports for the Cobalt Water Treatment Facility.     
           CARRIED 
Mayor Sartoretto thanked Victor on behalf of Council for the excellent water treatment plant tour and the 
professional and meticulous reports. 
 

b) Amnesty Week 
15-064 
MOVED BY:    G. Bigelow 
SECONDED BY:    P. Wuest 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  Council approves the elimination of the Spring Clean-up Program for the Town of 
Cobalt and in lieu of the program approves an annual Amnesty Program consisting of two (2) weeks, one in the 
spring and one in the fall of amnesty (no applicable Tipping Fees) at the Landfill Site; AND FURTHER THAT: 
Council direct staff to consult with the City of Temiskaming Shores to determine acceptable dates; AND 
FURTHER THAT: Council direct staff to prepare the necessary communication to inform the residents of the 
modified level of service being the elimination of the Spring Clean-up Program and implementation of the 
annual Amnesty Program.     
           CARRIED 



Minutes for the Regular Meeting of Council on April 7, 2015 Page 3 of 6 

Councillor Bigelow explained that residents would be allowed to bring burnables and metal to the Public 
Works Department for disposal.   
 

c) Administrative Report 2015-04: LED Street Lights Conversion Project 
15-065 
MOVED BY:    P. Wuest 
SECONDED BY:    G. Bigelow 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  Council acknowledge receipt of Administrative Report 2015-04 on the LED Street 
Lights Conversion Project; AND FURTHER THAT, Council hereby directs staff to proceed with a joint 
procurement process with the City of Temiskaming Shores for the LED Street Lights Conversion Project. 
           CARRIED 
 

6.4 Culture, Tourism & Heritage 

a) Bunker 
Councillor Harrison reported that the is receiving a new laptop through the Cultural Coordinator in 
Temiskaming Shores and there would be a Mother’s Day day hosted by the Bunker on May 9th, 2015 from 
1-4pm. 

 

b) Mining Museum 
Councillor Harrison expressed concern over the Museum’s intent to sell silver bars. 
 

6.5 Economic Development & Property Management 

a) Train Station 
Councillor Wuest reported that the Train Station transaction has official closed and a media release was 
issued.  The feedback has been very positive so far. 

 

b) Mining Show 
Councillor Wuest attended the 2015 Mining Show and feels there are indications of new exploration 
initiatives. 
 

c) Economic  Development Officer 
15-066 
MOVED BY:    G. Bigelow  
SECONDED BY:    P. Wuest  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  Council acknowledge the FedNor approval of the CCL Economic Development 
Officer Project;  AND FURTHER THAT: for the purpose of the Project, Council hereby approves the equal 
partnership between the Town of Cobalt, Coleman Township and the Town of Latchford.Fednor approved the 
application for the three year funding of an economic development officer to be shared by Cobalt, Coleman and 
Latchford. 
           CARRIED 
Mayor Sartoretto explained that the oversight of the EDO would be provided by a committee comprised of the 
mayors of the three communities as well as the Cobalt CAO, since the EDO would be based in the Cobalt 
Town Office. 
 

6.6 Housing & Social Services 
Councillor Schwartz announced that the next meeting of the Housing and Social Services advisory group 
would take place on Thursday, April 9th, 2015 at 11am. 
 
Mayor Sartoretto announced a meeting with a representative of CMHC to discuss affordable housing is 
scheduled for Friday, May 1, 2015 at 11am.  

 
6.7 Recreation 

a) Hoist Room Membership for Council  
15-067 
MOVED BY:    G. Bigelow  



Minutes for the Regular Meeting of Council on April 7, 2015 Page 4 of 6 

SECONDED BY:    P. Wuest  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  Members of Council be offered free membership to the Hoist Room in lieu of an 
increase to the Council honorarium.          
           CARRIED 
 
Councillor Nielsen reported that she is working to set up a meeting with the Health Unit to finalize details on 
the Recreation Survey and working with the Principal of St-Patrick’s School to coordinate a clean-up day. 

 

Outside Boards, Committees and Commissions 

a) Transit Committee 

Joint Procurement for two 9-meter buses  
15-068 
MOVED BY:    P. Wuest 
SECONDED BY:    G. Bigelow 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  Council acknowledge the recommendation from the Transit Committee; AND 
FURTHER THAT: Council endorses the recommendation to direct staff to investigate a joint procurement for 
the purchase of two (2) 9 metre accessible transit buses.       
           CARRIED 
 

SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS 

15-069 
MOVED BY:    P. Wuest 
SECONDED BY:    G. Bigelow 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
1. That the accounts as per Schedule No. 15-07 in the amount of $165,280.68 be approved as paid in 

the month of March, 2015. 
2. That the accounts as per Schedule No. 15-08 in the amount of  $65,667.57 be paid after receiving 
Council approval.         CARRIED 
 

 

CORRESPONDENCE FOR COUNCIL COMMENT 

15-070 
MOVED BY:    P. Wuest 
SECONDED BY:    G. Bigelow 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  Council agrees to co-host the ACFO-Temiskaming 40th Anniversary of the Franco-
Ontario Flag event to be held at the Cobalt Community Hall.      
           CARRIED 
 
15-071 
MOVED BY:    P. Wuest 
SECONDED BY:    G. Bigelow 
WHEREAS The Town of Cobalt is owner of collection at the Mining Museum; BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
Council hereby objects to the sale of the silver bars as outlined in their letter of April 1, 2015.  
           CARRIED 
 

CORRESPONDENCE FOR COUNCIL INFORMATION 

15-072 
MOVED BY:    M. Harrison 
SECONDED BY:    R. Schwartz  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The correspondence for Council Information items be noted, filed and recorded in 
the minutes of this meeting. 

CARRIED 
March 2/15 Ministry of Agriculture, Food 

and Rural Affairs 
Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund 
(OCIF) Formula Component – Contribution 
Agreement 

15-35 

March 5/15 Communities in Bloom Invitation to participate in a program that will 15-36 



Minutes for the Regular Meeting of Council on April 7, 2015 Page 5 of 6 

showcase, involve and benefit your 
community 

March 
12/15 

Ministry of Education  2015 Proportions of Enrolment for purposes of 
Education Act 

15-37 

March 
17/15 

Government of Ontario Inspection of Approved (2015-2016) Annual 
Work Schedule  - Temagami Management 
Unit 

15-38 

March 
17/15 

Government of Ontario Inspection of Approved 2015-2016 Annual 
Work Schedule Sudbury Forest 

15-39 

March 
17/15 

David Brydges, Vivian Hylands Arena review 15-40 

March 
18/15 

Ontario Municipal Water 
Association 

OMWA membership 15-41 

March 
19/15 

Ernie Hardeman, PC Critic for 
Municipal Affairs and Housing 

Housing Service Corporation Accountability 
Act 

15-42 

March 
19/15 

Ontario Provincial Police Planned Launch of OPP Text with 9-1-1 
Service 

15-43 

March 
23/15 

Ministry of Finance Education Property Tax Rates 15-44 

March 
23/15 

Little Claybelt Homesteaders 
Museum 

Sponsorship donation for 2015 15-45 

March 
27/15 

Theresa Tasse Request for No-Charge use of the Community 
Hall for the Stand Up Program 

15-46 

March 
27/15 

Dave Hemingway – Charter 
Challenge 

Request for financial support for the Charger 
Challenge of Ontario’s wind turbine approval 
process 

15-47 

March 
25/15 

ESCSM Awards and Bursary request for the 2015 
Commencement Exercise  

15-48 

March 
30/15 

Patent & Trademark 
Organization  

Trademark renewal 15-49 

 
 

BY-LAWS 

a) 2015-009: FedNor Funding Agreement – Economic Development Officer  
15-073 
MOVED BY:    M. Harrison 
SECONDED BY:    R. Schwartz  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT: By-law 2015-009 being a by-law to authorize the execution the FedNor Funding 
Agreement for the Economic Develop Officer Project be taken as read a first, second and third time and finally 
passed this 7th day of April 2015;; AND FURTHER THAT: the said by-law be signed by the Mayor and CAO 
and recorded in the by-law book. 
           CARRIED 
 

ON-GOING BUSINESS 

None. 

 

NOTICE OF MOTION  

None. 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

None. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

a)  CAO attendance at Spring Zone 8 Meeting        
15-074 



Minutes for the Regular Meeting of Council on April 7, 2015 Page 6 of 6 

MOVED BY:    R. Schwartz  
SECONDED BY:    M. Harrison   
BE IT RESOLVED THAT: Council approve the CAO’s attendance at the Spring Zone 8 meeting on May 20-21 
in Kirkland Lake.         CARRIED  
   

CONFIRMATION BY-LAW 

15-075 
MOVED BY:    M. Harrison 
SECONDED BY:    R. Schwartz  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT: By-law No. 2015-010, being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council of the 
Corporation of the Town of Cobalt, be taken as read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 7th 
day of April 2015; AND FURTHER THAT: the said by-law be signed by the Mayor and CAO and recorded in the 
by-law book. 
           CARRIED 

ADJOURNMENT 

15-076 
MOVED BY:    R. Schwartz  
SECONDED BY:    M. Harrison   
BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  The meeting adjourn at 8:10 pm 
           CARRIED 
 
 
              
          Mayor 
 
           ____________ 
          CAO 



Minutes for the Special Meeting of Council on April 21, 2015 Page 1 of 2 

  THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF COBALT 

 

SPECIAL MEETING OF COUNCIL 

  COBALT COMMUNITY HALL 

TUESDAY, APRIL 21, 2015 

MINUTES 

  
 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING HELD TUESDAY, APRIL 21, 2015 COMMENCING AT 6:30 PM. 

 

PRESENT:  

T. Sartoretto  Mayor 

S. Nielsen  Councillor  

P. Wuest  Councillor 

R. Schwartz  Councillor 

G. Othmer  Councillor 

M. Harrison  Councillor 

G. Bigelow  Councillor 

 

STAFF:            Candice Bedard, CAO, Victor Legault, Public Works Director, Dale Taylor, Deputy Clerk 

Treasurer, Cassandra Miron 

MEDIA:  Darlene Wroe 

PUBLIC:  34 from Cobalt, 4 from Coleman and 1 from New Liskeard (See attached sign in sheets) 

   

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm by Mayor T. Sartoretto   

 

 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

15-077 
MOVED BY:   G. Othmer  
SECONDED BY:   R. Schwartz 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The regular council meeting Agenda dated April 21, 2015 be adopted as presented. 
           CARRIED 
 

ARENA REVIEW PROCESS 

See slideshow – Cobalt Arena Review presented by Candice Bedard, CAO 
See slideshow – Community Conversation presented by Mayor Sartoretto 
 

QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

Alex Verbruggen: do we have demo costs? 
Tina: has not been part of the discussion, we would be exploring alternate uses 
 
Vivian Hylands:  couldn’t hear 
 
Tina: spoke on endowment fund  
 
Rene Lafleur:  need more people involved in usage but then increases the costs; money could be used for something 
else; not enough young ppl for usage; have to rely on what we have. 
 
Tina: spoke on Golden Age Club activities 
 
Vivian Hylands:  could bldg be opened for 50th anniversary of the NOHA; what about mothballing? 
 
Robert Leblanc:  does the Hoist Room contribute to the operating expenses; why not? 
 
Rene Lafleur: who is using the Hoist Room? 
 
Sue:  Trillium Funding provided for upgrades plus $10,000.00 from Town 
 
Robert Leblanc:  where does the revenue from the Hoist Room go? 



Minutes for the Special Meeting of Council on April 21, 2015 Page 2 of 2 

 
Tina:  Admin costs are not charged to the Hoist Room 
 
Alex Verbruggen:  what is the Hoist Room? 
 
Vivian Hylands:  Coleman turns their Libraries grant to the Cobalt Public Library.  Does Coleman contribute to the 
Arena? 
 
Kim Peddie:  presentation said CCFS is not part of Cobalt.  Why?  Mini Putt was closed last year, couldn’t use it.  
what is happening this year?  Closed again? 
 
Pat Anderson:  Mini Putt was not part of the concept for the park, Manager at the time incorporated it into the plans 
and benefactor approved.  $300,000.00 was given to create the park.  
 
Tina:  maybe CCFS Club would like the opportunity to operate the Mini Putt? 
 
Kim Peddie:  Nope 
 
Tina:  going forward there will not be any capital projects that do not pay for themselves 
 
Mario Bujold:  What is TShores saying?  How are they willing to help?  Why are they going to Quebec? 
 
Tina:  parents are saying they want to go to Notre Dame because of the cost. 
 
Mike Minderlein:  parents are choosing to go and are paying ice rent themselves.  Truck Rodeo assists with the Notre 
Dame Arena expenses and can therefore offer low ice rents. 
 
Tina:  TShores booking were down 40% this year. 
 
Aaron Williams:  teams are fighting for the 6:00 or 7:00 time slot and are doubling up teams on the ice to use that time 
rather than booking 2 separate times.  
 
Mike Minderlein:  when is structural survey scheduled? 
 
Tina:  before the Fall.  Its has to been done either way. 
 
 
No other questions. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

15-078 
MOVED BY:    G. Bigelow 
SECONDED BY:    M. Harrison  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  The meeting adjourn at 7:34 pm 
           CARRIED 
 
 
              
          Mayor 
 
           ____________  
         CAO 













 Council acknowledged that there was need 
to study the arena 

 

 Appointed the Arena Review Committee 
 

 The Committee met with users groups 
 

 Met with Public Works to consider facility 
and equipment needs 
 

 Discussed subsidy levels 
 

 Consideration of the OPERATIONS 
shortfall 

 



 ALL services are 

provided by 

municipalities at a cost 
 

 What cost is acceptable 

to taxpayers? 
 

 2014 Deficit $55,000 
 

 2015 Deficit is projected 

to rise to $70,000 
 

 14% up to 18% of tax 

levy 
 



How to close the gap? 



 Usage has declined, is that a sign of things 

to come? 

 How many users are taxpayers? 

 Can we REDUCE costs? 

 What capital costs can we anticipate? 

 Can revenues be INCREASED? 

 Where can we find money and will that 

money help with the OPERATIONAL 

bottom line? 

 



 Two primary user groups: 

 Temiskaming Shores Minor Hockey 
 Cobalt-Coleman Figure Skating Club 

 2014-2015 Usage dropped by 43% (Hockey) and 17% 
(Skating) 

 Skating anticipates similar enrolment next year; hockey 
hopes for increased enrolment 

 New users groups are unlikely 

 Humidity issues challenge summer usage 

 Volume of usage is not anticipated to increase; status 
quo is possible 

 



 Cobalt Users:  

 Skating  10 

 Hockey  6 
 

 Primary users are not residents 

 Per Cobalt User Subsidy = $3,125 

 1.4% of population using asset that 

accounts for 14% of tax levy 

 



 Accounts for 70% of net subsidy 
 

 Increased by 10% in 2014 
 

 Hydro One approved by Energy Board for further 

increases by 2017 
 

 Reduction of hours is unlikely to result in a operational 

efficiencies since primary usage is already reduced to 

Mon-Thurs 4-8pm 
 

 No perceived energy efficiencies other than moving to 

natural ice, which may affect usage by organized sports 
 

 Utilities costs will increase in coming years 



 Cobalt facilities are operated by unionized 
employees 
 

 Labour rates are set by union contract 
 

 Part time labour is used to the fullest 
potential 
 

 As the facility/equipment ages, more labour 
is used to maintain 
 

 Labour costs are not likely to decrease 



 Roof assessment and potential improvements 

 Clock 

 New boards 

 Flooring 

 Zamboni 

 Glass 

 There is a market for used equipment 

 The facility and its equipment are aging and capital 
investment is needed in the coming years 
 

 Grants and other full or partial funding sources can be 
sought to offset capital improvements  



 

 Unlikely to see increased revenue from rentals 
 

 Free skates are not a significant revenue 
generators 

 Decreasing the user fee increases the net subsidy 
 

 GRANTS are not available to offset OPERATING 
COSTS 

 Hoist Room does not contribute to arena revenue 
 

 Fundraising was discussed and the Committee 
awaits a proposal 
 

 

 



Community 
conversation 

The future of the Cobalt 
Arena 

April  21, 2015 



Council wants to keep 
the arena open 



Role of Council 
• Responsible management of public 

monies 

• Review operations and allocate 
expenditures 

• Make decisions based on facts and 
what is in the best interests of the 
community 



Role of Council 
• Be prepared to make hard 

decisions 

• Position the community for its 
future by looking down the 
road 

• Exploit opportunities when 
these are presented 

 



The arena is only part of 
the conversation 

This is not a new conversation at 
the Council table.  The discussion 
regarding the ongoing use of the 
arena goes back at least 15 years 



What has changed? 
• Fewer young people..we had 4 schools that 

were full, now we have one that has room 
to grow 

• Our young adults, who were always at the 
arena at its peak are now over sixty 

• They also don’t play baseball anymore 

• The two user groups are not from Cobalt 



Costs we cannot control 
• Policing 

• DTSSAB 

• Health Unit 

• School taxes 

• MPAC 

• Utilities (hydro and gas) 



Services we must 
provide 

 

• Sewer and water 
• Road and sidewalk maintenance 
• Road and sidewalk snow removal 
• Municipal administration 
• Fire protection 
• Waste management 



Services supported by the 
Town 

• Library 
• Arena 
• Museums 
• Theatre 
• Cemeteries 

 

• Transit 

• Hoist room 

• Airport 

• Doctor’s 
office 



Recent improvements 

• Lang Street resurfacing 

• Snowplow sander 

• Waste management bins 

• Pump house investment 

• Sewer improvements 

• Hoist room upgrades… 



Buildings Owned by the Town 

• Arena 

• Fire hall 

• Pump house 

• Town shop 

• Town office 

• Golden Age Club 

• Wetlands 
structures 

• Fraser 
• Library 
• Mining 

museum 
• Firefighters’ 

museum 
• Classic Theatre 
• Historical 

Society Office 
 



Other 

•Wetlands 

•Water tower 



Each of these 
carries a cost 



Going forward 

For all of our facilities 
and services 



Considerations 
• Use 
• Value to the 

community 
• Costs 
• Revenues 
• Subsidy 

 

• Age of the facility 

• Maintenance cost 

• Projected capital 
conservation  

• Foreseeable 
upgrade needs 



Context 
• Budget constraints 

• Aging facility 

• Increasing costs 

• Declining utilisation 



Three Options 

•Leave it open 

•Enhance the facility 

•Close it 
 



To have it all 

Costs Revenues 



This year 
• Our water rates and sewer rates will be 

adjusted to reflect full cost recovery 
(that’s the law!) 

• Waste management fee will be adjusted 
this year to reflect the cost of curbside 
recycling and disposal costs 



1% increase in taxes 
provides about $3400 – 
we would need a 20% 
increase to cover the 
subsidy for the arena 



Future considerations 

• Repairs to the water tower 

• New roof for the Fraser 

• Wetlands COA 

• New town shop 

• Replacement of rolling stock for public works 

• Completion of the asset management plan 



if it is in the best interests of the 
people of Cobalt and we have 
the resources to do so. 

Council wants to keep 
the arena open 



How do we increase 
revenue without 
increasing the costs? 



This is the important 
question facing all of 
our community groups 



Energy
East
Pipeline

Ontario 
Project 
Overview 

Town of Cobalt

April 28, 2015

EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Energy East Pipeline in Brief

$12 billion - investment required to build Energy East

4,600 km - length of 42” pipeline from Alberta to New 
Brunswick

1.1 million barrels/day - total capacity 

14,000 - jobs during development and construction 

October 2014 - National Energy Board application filing 

December 2020 - expected in service date to New 
Brunswick

2EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED

Presenter
Presentation Notes




ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

The more you know about oil, the 
more Energy East makes sense

EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED

3



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Truck and Tanker Equivalent

1,100,000 barrels per day (bbl/d) =

EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED

X 1,571/day700 bbl

X 4,400/day250 bbl

4



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Producers will find means to get oil 
to market

Incredible increase of rail terminals in North America reflects 
the shortage of pipeline capacity

Source: US State Dept. Final Supplemental EIS for KXL

Rail Terminals in 2010 Rail Terminals in 2013

EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED
5



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Project Timeline

• April 3, 2013: Community Consultation Began
• October 30, 2014: NEB Application Filed
• April 2, 2015: Québec Scope Change Announcement – Amendment to be 

filed Q4-2015
• 2016/2017: Final NEB Approval
• 2020: In-Service

NEB Filing Review Process:
• 3-month review for application completeness
• NEB initiates formal review and applications from those seeking intervenor

status
• NEB hosts formal hearings along Project route  
• NEB must render its final recommendation to the federal government within 

18 months of formal review

6EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Re-purposing gas to oil service: 
We’ve done it before

Keystone: A Premier Crude 
Oil Pipeline System
• 4,247 km crude oil pipeline 

serving Mid-West PADD II 
and Gulf Coast PADD III 
markets

• 590,000 bbl/d of capacity

• Safely transported approx. 
700 million bbl of crude oil 

EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED
7

Presenter
Presentation Notes




ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Ontario Engagement

 ~126 Meetings

 63 Municipal Meetings

 46 Stakeholder meetings

 17 EMR meetings

 59 Open Houses

 40 EE Community Open Houses (3,000+ attendees)

 19 EMP Community Open Houses (970 attendees)

 25 Resolutions of support

 22 resolutions of support from Ontario municipalities

 3 resolutions of support from regional municipal associations (FONOM, 
NOMA, TeMAG)

 Ongoing First Nations & Métis Engagement:

 Engaging with 66 Ontario First Nation and Métis communities

 21 signed Communications and Engagement Funding Agreements with 
Ontario First Nations and Métis communities

 542 Engagement meetings with Ontario First Nation and Métis communities

EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED

Engagement does not
cease with project 

application filing. We 
continue to engage and 

listen.

8



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

FAQ #1:
Protecting Water

• Protecting the environment is a core value at 
TransCanada 
– Both during construction and throughout the life of the project

• Ongoing integrity inspections and maintenance 
programs are by far the best defense against unplanned 
accidents and malfunctions
– TransCanada invests approximately $1 billion annually on these 

programs

9EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Prevention and Protection

• Prevention and protection of sensitive areas, including surface
and groundwater, is further achieved by:
– Using heavier walled pipe at water crossings and installing via HDD

– Strategically placing valves to reduce potential outflow volumes

– Using abrasion resistant coating

– Installing pipe to a depth at or exceeding CSA Z662

– Evaluating potential environmental impacts

– Analyzing potential risks associated with the crossings

– Developing and practicing comprehensive Emergency Response Plans

– Developing Geographic Response Plans at the most sensitive locations

10
EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

FAQ #2: 
Safety and Emergency Response

From the control centre in Calgary, to aerial patrols, to ground personnel –
we continuously monitor and can take immediate action.

EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED 11

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Pipelines are the safest way to transport oilUse of advanced pipeline technologyAdditional safety features at road, rail and water crossingsHeavy-wall pipe, deeper pipe burial, installation of additional isolation valvesPipeline will be monitored through a high-tech control centre 24/7, 365 days a yearHighly trained operators can shut down the pipeline within minutes$1 billion annual investment in pipeline safety and integrity In-line inspection, routine aerial patrols, ground surveys, cathodic protection against corrosion, “Call before you dig” program 



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Ready to respond

• Emergency Response 
Plans

• Mitigation Measures

• 100% Financial 
Responsibility for Clean-up

In 2013, TransCanada conducted over 90 emergency 
drills and exercises.

12EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Highly-detailed Emergency Response Plans (ERPs) will be in place before EE is in serviceTC has and will continue to work with local first responders to develop ERPOngoing provision of information (email, mail, ad hoc meetings and calls)Regional introductory meeting across EE route (Spring 2014)Capacity and Risk Assessment Survey (Q4 2014 – Q1 2015)Regional workshops to review/refine Draft Energy East ERP (Q1 2015 – Q1 2016)



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

FAQ #3:
Economic Benefits

$36.4 billion additional GDP for the Canadian 
economy 

• $15.1 billion for Ontario

8,400 direct jobs and 5,300 indirect jobs for 
development and construction

• 2,300 direct and 1,900 indirect in Ontario

900 direct jobs and 2,400 indirect jobs for 
operations  

• 160 direct and 1,200 indirect in Ontario

$7.7 billion in additional tax revenues 

• $2.6 billion in Ontario
Source: Conference Board of Canada, October 2014
Calculations based on 7 year development/construction phase, followed by 20 year 
operations phase (2013 $M)

Total GDP Benefit During 
Construction (7 years) and 

Operations (20 years)

AB
19%

SK
8%

MB
5%

ON
42%

QC
16%

NB
9%

BC
1%

Other
1%

AB SK MB ON QC NB BC Other

13EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

FAQ #4: 
Gas Capacity & Domestic Market Supply

Ample capacity to meet domestic markets

Available capacity is 
sufficient to meet current 
peaks as well as newly 

subscribed domestic and 
export Firm Service  

assuming all renewals 
are exercised

14
EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Gas to Eastern Canada

MARCELLUS / UTICA

Existing export points to USA
become import sources as 

Marcellus/Utica supply is connected

Proposed Eastern 
Mainline Expansion

15EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

We Are in the Business of Delivering 
Energy Safely

Ready to Respond
In 2013, TransCanada conducted over 90 emergency 

drills and exercises.  Consultations with local 
emergency responders along the Energy East route are 

underway. 

Monitoring 24/7
From the control centre in Calgary, to aerial patrols, to 
ground personnel – we continuously monitor and can 

take immediate action.

World-Class Integrity
TransCanada spent an average of $900 million per 
year over the past three years on maintenance and 

integrity programs.

Commitment to the Environment
We protect the environment and the communities 

along our pipeline – we live and work in these 
communities too.

16

EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED



EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Who is TransCanada?

Leading North American Energy 
Infrastructure Company 

One of North America’s Largest Natural Gas 
Pipeline Networks
• 68,500 km of pipeline 
• 14 Bcf/d or 20% of demand

Third Largest Natural Gas Storage Operator
• 406 Bcf of capacity

Largest Private Sector Power Generator in 
Canada
• 21 power plants, 11,800 MW
• Wind, solar & hydro – 1,167 MW

Premier Oil Pipeline System
• 1.4 million bbl/d ultimate capacity
• 33% of Canadian exports

18EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Our Profile in Ontario

19

Length of Natural Gas 
Pipeline

8,070 
km

No. of Compressor 
Stations

70

No. of Power Plants 5
No. of Landowners 5,579
No. of Employees 249
Salaries $38.2 M
Property Taxes $76.7 M
Provincial Taxes $7.6 M
Community Investment $1.5 M

Updated December 31, 2013. 

EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Operations include Canadian Mainline natural gas pipelineand Halton Hills power plant. The Bruce Power and PortlandsEnergy Centre, both partially owned by TransCanada, arenot operated by TransCanada and therefore have not beenincluded in this summary.



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Independent Review: 
“Minimal Impact”

“…it is Navigant’s expectation that 
the TCPL Mainline conversion will 
likely have minimal impact upon 
Ontario gas consumers. 

“…Ontario as well as Eastern 
Canadian demand more generally 
is already being met without 
dependence on the Mainline 
capacity to be converted. 

“…future gas demand growth in 
Ontario will be met primarily from 
gas coming into Ontario from U.S. 
gas supplies in the Marcellus and 
Utica basins."

20
EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Independent Review: 
Energy East “Desirable”

“The Energy East project is desirable 
insofar as it consists of converting 
natural gas transport assets that are 
currently underused to another use. 
The Régie believes that such a 
conversion could contribute to 
limiting the increase in natural gas 
transport rates. 
“The Régie concludes that the 
Energy East project will have little 
impact on the price of natural gas in 
the Dawn and AECO hubs. Since 
Quebec’s distributors supply 
themselves from these points, the 
Energy East project will have little 
effect on their cost of supply.” 

21
EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Support Across Ontario

“It is rare for a single project to have a nation-building dimension to it, but 
the Energy East Pipeline Project has exactly that, by stimulating 
substantial economic activity across 6 provinces. This initiative will not only 
open up employment opportunities for Building Trades workers, but will 
also have a multiplier effect on local maintenance and service jobs in 
communities across Canada.”
- Pat Dillon, Business Manager, Building and Construction Trades 

Council of Ontario

“The Métis Nation of Ontario (MNO) is pleased with the positive and 
constructive relationship-building efforts TransCanada has demonstrated 
by signing this CEFA. Through this agreement, our communities and 
citizens will be able to learn about the Project as well as assess its impacts 
on Métis rights, interests and claims in order to ultimately make informed 
decisions on Energy East. This agreement is also a ‘first’ for the MNO 
because it sets out a multi-region consultation process that will see rights-
bearing Métis communities along the Project’s route working together.”
- Gary Lipinski, President, Métis Nation of Ontario

EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED
22



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Support Across Ontario

“Our membership, which consists of 110 municipalities across the 
northeast, passed a resolution in support of Energy 
East...Transporting oil by pipeline has shown to be significantly safer 
than other modes of transportation. TransCanada has engaged in 
considerable consultation with stakeholders and has demonstrated 
that the highest standard of protection for lands and waterways across 
the north will be undertaken.”
- Al Spacek, Mayor of Kapuskasing and President of the 

Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities (FONOM)

“Access to a reliable, cost competitive supply of energy is paramount 
to the future of Canadian manufacturing. TransCanada’s proposed 
Energy East project is a significant step in our nation’s energy 
strategy; and will create both jobs and supply chain opportunities in all 
sectors of our economy including manufacturing. It also presents a 
significant source of new tax revenue for government”
- Ian Howcroft, Vice President, Canadian Manufacturers & 

Exporters, Canada’s largest trade and industry association
EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED

23



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Support for Energy East

24EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203 - Energy East Protected - UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED

Township of McGarry

Municipality of 
Val Rita-Harty

24



ENERGY EAST PIPELINE

Black River-Matheson

Kirkland Lake

McGarry

Englehart

Chamberlain

Latchford Coleman

James

Hudson

Kerns

Temiskaming Shores

Harris

Casey

Brethour

Hilliard

Armstrong

Harley

Thornloe

S
upport for E

nergy E
ast

Smooth Rock Falls

Val Rita-Harty

Opasatika

EE4721-TCPL-PR-PN-0203-Energy East Protected- UNCONTROLLED IF PRINTED

2525



 
 

 

2015 RENT INCREASE GUIDELINE 
 

 
Each year, the Ontario government announces the province’s rent increase guideline for the 
following year.  
 
Ontario’s annual Rent Increase Guideline is based on the Ontario Consumer Price Index (CPI), 
which is a measure of inflation calculated monthly by Statistics Canada.  The rate of allowable 
rent increases for 2015 will be 1.6 per cent. 
 
The guideline is the maximum amount that most landlords can increase a tenant’s rent during 
the year without making an application to the Landlord and Tenant Board.  It is based on the 
CPI, which is regarded as an objective, reliable measure of inflation, charting the change in the 
price all goods and services in the provincial economy. 
 
In most cases, the rent for a unit can be increased if at least 12 months have passed since the 
tenant first moved in, or since his or her last rent increase. The tenant must be given proper 
written notice of the rental increase at least 90 days before the rent increase takes effect. 
 
The 2015 guideline applies to rent increases between January 1 and December 31, 2015.   
 
 
THE GUIDELINE FORMULA 
 
The 2015 rent increase guideline is calculated by averaging the per cent change in the Ontario 
Consumer Price Index during the previous 12 months, from June 2013 to May 2014, as required 
by the Residential Tenancies Act, 2006 (the RTA).   
 
Note: The RTA sets out that the rent increase guideline cannot exceed 2.5 per cent, even if the 
CPI calculation is higher.   
 
 
SAMPLE RENT INCREASE GUIDELINE 
 
The monthly rent of an apartment is $800 beginning August 1, 2014.  With proper written 90 
days notice to the tenant, the landlord could lawfully increase the rent 12 months later on 
August 1, 2015. 
 
F
 

or example: 

 The guideline for 2015 is 1.6 per cent. 
 The rental increase is 1.6 per cent of $800 = $12.80. 
 Therefore, the new rent on August 1, 2015 could be up to $812.80 ($800 + $12.80). 

 1



 2

 
 
ABOVE GUIDELINE INCREASES 
 
Landlords can apply to the Landlord and Tenant Board for an increase above the guideline, if 
their costs for the municipal taxes or utilities have increased by more than the guideline plus 50 
per cent. 
 
Landlords can also apply for an increase above the guideline for operating costs related to 
security services and for eligible capital expenditures. 
 
 
SAMPLE ABOVE GUIDELINE INCREASE 
 
The 2015 rent increase guideline is 1.6 per cent.  Fifty per cent of this guideline is 0.8 per cent. 
 
To claim an above guideline increase related to municipal taxes, costs should increase by more 
than 2.4 per cent (1.6 per cent + 0.8 per cent = 2.4 per cent.) 
 
F
  

or example: 

 In 2014, a landlord’s municipal taxes were $10,000. 
 In 2015, the landlord’s municipal taxes increased to $10,500 - an increase of five per cent. 
 Therefore, the landlord is eligible to apply for an above guideline increase because the 

landlord’s municipal taxes increased by more than 2.4 per cent. 
 
 
GUIDELINE AND RENT DEPOSITS 
 
A landlord can collect a rent deposit from a new tenant on or before the start of a new tenancy. 
The rent deposit can only be used as the rent payment for the last month or week before the 
tenant moves out.  The landlord must pay the tenant interest on the rent deposit every year.  
Under the Residential Tenancies Act, 2006, the interest rate is the same as the rent increase 
guideline.  
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
The Landlord and Tenant Board provides information to the public through a network of offices 
across Ontario and on the Board website at www. ltb.gov.on.ca.  The Board can also be 
reached toll-free at: 1-888-332-3234, or at: 416-645-8080.  
 
A copy of the Residential Tenancies Act, 2006, can be ordered from ServiceOntario 
Publications toll-free at: 1-800-668-9938, or at: 416-326-5300.  It can also be ordered online at: 
www.publications.gov.on.ca.  
 
The text of the Residential Tenancies Act, 2006 is available on the e-Laws website at: 
www.e-laws.gov.on.ca 
 
 
 

http://www.ltb.gov.on.ca/
http://www.publications.gov.on.ca/
http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/


 
 
 
PAST GUIDELINES 
 
 

Year Guideline % 

2015 1.6 

2014 0.8 

2013 2.5 

2012 3.1 

2011 0.7 

2010 2.1 

2009 1.8 

2008 1.4 

2007 2.6 

2006 2.1 

2005 1.5 

2004 2.9 

2003 2.9 

2002 3.9 

2001 2.9 

2000 2.6 

1999 3.0 

1998 3.0 

1997 2.8 

1996 2.8 

1995 2.9 

1994 3.2 

1993 4.9 

1992 6.0 

1991 5.4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 3



Town of Cobalt 
A/P Preliminary Cash Disbursements 
Schedule No. 15-09     April 28, 2015 

 
 Vendor Invoice Number Date Gross Amount Discount Net Amount Method 
 37 A & B Digital Printing, PO Box 1120, New Liskeard, ON, P0J 1P0 
 63445 4/28/2015 $179.67 $0.00 $179.67 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $179.67 $0.00 $179.67 

  
 335 A.M.C.T.O. Zone 8, P.O. Box 374, Matheson, ON, P0K 1N0 
 Zone 8 Spring Session 4/28/2015 $311.20 $0.00 $311.20 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $311.20 $0.00 $311.20 

  
 38 Accuracy Environmental Laboratories Ltd., PO Box 426, 1470 Government Road W., Kirkland Lake, ON, P2N 3J1 
 31906 4/28/2015 $1,109.64 $0.00 $1,109.64 Cheque 
 31907 4/28/2015 $1,168.22 $0.00 $1,168.22 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $2,277.86 $0.00 $2,277.86 

  
 304 Arnstein Industrial Equipment Limited, P.O. Box 1258, 100 Highway 17 East at 11 South, North Bay, ON, P1B 8K5 
 01-35544 4/28/2015 $384.09 $0.00 $384.09 Cheque 
 02-24542 4/28/2015 $3,083.07 $0.00 $3,083.07 Cheque 
 02-24608 4/28/2015 $1,451.89 $0.00 $1,451.89 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $4,919.05 $0.00 $4,919.05 
 
 459 B&T Parts and Supplies, 21 Whitewood Ave, P.O. Box 1122, New Liskeard, ON, P0J 1P0 
 3-3004671 4/28/2015 $810.15 $0.00 $810.15 Cheque 
 3-3004887 4/28/2015 $67.13 $0.00 $67.13 Cheque 
 3-3004888 4/28/2015 ($95.03) $0.00 ($95.03) Cheque 
 3-3005089 4/28/2015 $25.00 $0.00 $25.00 Cheque 
 3-3005584 4/28/2015 $239.67 $0.00 $239.67 Cheque 
 3-3005683 4/28/2015 $5.51 $0.00 $5.51 Cheque 
 3-3005717 4/28/2015 $162.31 $0.00 $162.31 Cheque 
 3-3005862 4/28/2015 $288.15 $0.00 $288.15 Cheque 
 3-3006153 4/28/2015 $50.04 $0.00 $50.04 Cheque 
 3-3006331 4/28/2015 $54.88 $0.00 $54.88 Cheque 
 3-3006625 4/28/2015 $483.85 $0.00 $483.85 Cheque 
 3-3006790 4/28/2015 $43.51 $0.00 $43.51 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $2,135.17 $0.00 $2,135.17 

  
 39 Breault's Discount Warehouse, PO Box 1287, 74 Scott Street, New Liskeard, ON, P0J 1P0 
 18185 4/28/2015 $80.23 $0.00 $80.23 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $80.23 $0.00 $80.23 

   
 72 CGIS Spatial Solutions, 52 South Street, Perth, ON, K7H 2G7 
 42125 4/28/2015 $290.68 $0.00 $290.68 Cheque 
 Vendor Invoice Number Date Gross Amount Discount Net Amount Method 
 Total Vendor Payment: $290.68 $0.00 $290.68 

  
 43 City of Temiskaming Shores, PO Box 2050, 325 Farr Drive, Haileybury, ON, P0J 1K0 
 44246 4/28/2015 $3,514.30 $0.00 $3,514.30 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $3,514.30 $0.00 $3,514.30 



   
 
 Vendor Invoice Number Date Gross Amount Discount Net Amount Method 
 44 City of Timmins, 220 Algonquin Blvd E., Timmins, ON, P4N 1B3 
 18358 4/28/2015 $444.41 $0.00 $444.41 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $444.41 $0.00 $444.41 

   
 382 Clean Scene, Box 1568, New Liskeard, ON, P0J 1P0 
 17934 4/28/2015 $43.83 $0.00 $43.83 Cheque 
 18731 4/28/2015 $43.83 $0.00 $43.83 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $87.66 $0.00 $87.66 

   
 422 Compugen Inc., 100 Via Renzo Drive, Richmond Hill, ON, L4S 0B8 
 9080862 4/28/2015 $88.40 $0.00 $88.40 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $88.40 $0.00 $88.40 

   
 46 District of Temiskaming Social Services Admin Brd, PO Box 6006, New Liskeard, ON, P0J 1P0 
 5097 4/28/2015 $18,843.00 $0.00 $18,843.00 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $18,843.00 $0.00 $18,843.00 

   
 48 Gabbani Courier Service, PO Box 1539, 425 McKay Clements Dr, Haileybury, ON, P0J 1K0 
 409712 4/28/2015 $282.50 $0.00 $282.50 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $282.50 $0.00 $282.50 

   
 107 Haileybury Plumbing & Heating Inc., PO Box 244, 220 Niven Street, Haileybury, ON, P0J 1K0 
 2015-243 4/28/2015 $546.81 $0.00 $546.81 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $546.81 $0.00 $546.81 

   
 257 Hal Brant Elevator Services Ltd., P.O. Box 900, Hamilton, ON, L8N 3P6 
 86357 4/28/2015 $169.50 $0.00 $169.50 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $169.50 $0.00 $169.50 
 
 51 Home Improvement - Ace Hardware, PO Box 1257, 463 Morisette Drive, Haileybury, ON, P0J 1K0 
 1-137147 4/28/2015 $9.70 $0.00 $9.70 Cheque 
 1-137295 4/28/2015 $10.83 $0.00 $10.83 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $20.53 $0.00 $20.53 

   
 444 Les Ami(e)s de l'ACFO-Temiskaming, C.P. 1644, New Liskeard, ON, P0J 1P0 
 Translation fee 4/28/2015 $379.20 $0.00 $379.20 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $379.20 $0.00 $379.20 

   
 434 Magikist Ltd, 1488 Main Street, Winnipeg, MB, R2W 3W2 
 C09867 4/28/2015 $80.22 $0.00 $80.22 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $80.22 $0.00 $80.22 

  



 
 Vendor Invoice Number Date Gross Amount Discount Net Amount Method 
 289 Metal-Air Mechanical Systems Ltd., 2828 Belisle Dr., P.O.  Box 94, Val Caron, ON, P3N 1N6 
 114575 4/28/2015 $352.00 $0.00 $352.00 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $352.00 $0.00 $352.00 

  
 268 Metcon Sales & Engineering Ltd., 15 Connie Crescent, Unit 3, Concord, ON, L4K 1L3 
 055500 4/28/2015 $716.02 $0.00 $716.02 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $716.02 $0.00 $716.02 

   
 419 Municipal Service Providers, PO Box 339, North Cobalt, ON, P0J 1R0 
 AC 11-12, 2014 4/28/2015 $1,900.00 $0.00 $1,900.00 Cheque 
 AC 1-3, 2015 4/28/2015 $3,071.25 $0.00 $3,071.25 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $4,971.25 $0.00 $4,971.25 

  
 166 New Liskeard Bikers Reunion, P.O. Box 1317, New Liskeard, ON, P0J 1P0 
 2015 sponsorship 4/28/2015 $565.00 $0.00 $565.00 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $565.00 $0.00 $565.00 

   
 81 North Cobalt Flea Market, PO Box 40, 96 King Street, North Cobalt, ON, P0J 1R0 
 40 4/28/2015 $36.88 $0.00 $36.88 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $36.88 $0.00 $36.88 

  
 323 Ontario Good Roads Association, 1525 Cornwall Road, Unit 22, Oakville, ON, L6J 0B2 
 33854 4/28/2015 $601.43 $0.00 $601.43 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $601.43 $0.00 $601.43 

   
 59 Pioneer Diesel, PO Box 1088, 437136 Hawn Drive, New Liskeard, ON, P0J 1P0 
 224263 4/28/2015 $123.98 $0.00 $123.98 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $123.98 $0.00 $123.98 

   
 83 Pitney Bowes, PO Box 278, Orangeville, ON, L9W 2Z7 
 169010587139 4/28/2015 $214.35 $0.00 $214.35 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $214.35 $0.00 $214.35 

   
 60 Prism News Corp, PO Box 429, Cobalt, ON, P0J 1C0 
 21764 4/28/2015 $88.14 $0.00 $88.14 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $88.14 $0.00 $88.14 

   
 162 Purolator Inc., P.O. Box 1100, Etobicoke Postal Stn A, Etobicoke, ON, M9C 5K2 
 427198869 4/28/2015 $50.51 $0.00 $50.51 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $50.51 $0.00 $50.51 
 232 QuantumXpress, P.O. Box 1587, 32 Armstrong Street, New Liskeard, ON, P0J 1P0 
 56666 4/28/2015 $90.39 $0.00 $90.39 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $90.39 $0.00 $90.39 



  
 Vendor Invoice Number Date Gross Amount Discount Net Amount Method 
 462 Ramsay Law Office, P.O. Box 160, New Liskeard, ON, P0J 1P0 
 19509 4/28/2015 $1,297.24 $0.00 $1,297.24 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $1,297.24 $0.00 $1,297.24 

   
 429 REALTAX Inc., 17705B Leslie St., Suite 1A, Newmarket, ON, L3Y 3E3 
 49749 4/28/2015 $581.95 $0.00 $581.95 Cheque 
 49750 4/28/2015 $344.65 $0.00 $344.65 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $926.60 $0.00 $926.60 

   
 61 Ricky's Glass & Mirror, PO Box 1621, 908 Lakeshore Road, Haileybury, ON, P0J 1K0 
 22018 4/28/2015 $84.75 $0.00 $84.75 Cheque 
 22035 4/28/2015 $452.00 $0.00 $452.00 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $536.75 $0.00 $536.75 

   
 363 Steele Industrial Supplies Inc., 4 Commerce Crescent, North Bay, ON, P1A 0B4 
 150003954 4/28/2015 $40.66 $0.00 $40.66 Cheque 
 150004032 4/28/2015 $380.02 $0.00 $380.02 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $420.68 $0.00 $420.68 

  
 158 Story Environmental Inc., P.O. Box 716, 332 Main Street, Haileybury, ON, P0J 1K0 
 2282 4/28/2015 $237.98 $0.00 $237.98 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $237.98 $0.00 $237.98 

  
 514 Strongco, 1640 Enterprise Road, Mississauga, ON, L4W 4L4 
 824113 4/28/2015 $1,394.42 $0.00 $1,394.42 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $1,394.42 $0.00 $1,394.42 

  
 112 Techknowledgy Office Pro, 1776 Lasalle Blvd, P.O. Box 2697 Station A, Sudbury, ON, P3A 5J2 
 49348 4/28/2015 $145.77 $0.00 $145.77 Cheque 
 49439 4/28/2015 $74.07 $0.00 $74.07 Cheque 
 49568 4/28/2015 $131.46 $0.00 $131.46 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $351.30 $0.00 $351.30 

   
 63 Temiskaming Printing Company, PO Box 580, 18 Wellington Street, New Liskeard, ON, P0J 1P0 
 SP7510 4/28/2015 $717.55 $0.00 $717.55 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $717.55 $0.00 $717.55 

  
 165 Temiskaming Shores & Area Chamber of Commerce, P.O. Box 811, 883356 Hwy 65 East, New Liskeard, ON, P0J 1P0 
 2015-591 4/28/2015 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 

  
 202 Township of Coleman, RR #1, 937907 Marsh Bay Road, Coleman Township, ON, P0J 1C0 
 1628900 4/28/2015 $36.00 $0.00 $36.00 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $36.00 $0.00 $36.00 



 Vendor Invoice Number Date Gross Amount Discount Net Amount Method 

  
 66 Wayne's Corner Garage, PO Box 895, 7 Silver Street, Cobalt, ON, P0J 1C0 
 March 2015 vehicle fuel 4/28/2015 $1,386.54 $0.00 $1,386.54 Cheque 
 Total Vendor Payment: $1,386.54 $0.00 $1,386.54 

   

    Total  $51,765.40 

   

 That the accounts as per Schedule No. 15-09 in the amount of $51,765.40 be paid  

 after receiving Council approval.  



 

 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

FOR  

COMMENT 









 

 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

FOR  

INFORMATION 



















































 

 

 

 

 

Schedule “A” to  

By-Law No. 2015-011 

Media Policy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town of Cobalt                                                                                                                                Schedule   ‘A’  to  
Media Policy   By-Law No. 2015-011 

Town of Cobalt 

Media Communications Policy 

 

The Town of Cobalt strives to maintain a positive public image and has adopted this Policy 

to ensure that employees, volunteers and elected officials are aware of their 

responsibilities when engaging with media and Social Media.  While Social Media 

provides a novel means by which people interact, it also carries significant risks. The 

purpose of this Policy is to try to avoid those harmful and unwanted outcomes by 

establishing rules about Media participation that are intended to protect both the 

individual and the organization. 

Employees, volunteers and elected officials who engage the media or maintain personal 

Social Media pages are required to comply with this Policy. The Town of Cobalt reserves 

the right to monitor personal Social Media pages. 

Policy 

1.1. The Town of Cobalt is committed to open and transparent communication. The Town will 

communicate to its constituents using a variety of accepted tools; radio, television, 

newspaper, Town of Cobalt Website and social media.  

1.2 The Town will authorize specific individuals to engage media and social media in an official 

capacity to ensure that, as with all communications activities, they are accurate, consistent and 

professional. The Mayor and CAO speak on behalf of the Town of Cobalt unless otherwise 

approved. 

1.3  For the purposes of this Policy, “Social Media” refers to the collective name for various   

online channels of communication that involve the sharing and dissemination of information 

and other content – including, but not limited to: forums, web-based chat rooms and blogs; 

microblogging (e.g. Twitter); social networking (e.g. Facebook, Google+, LinkedIn); media (e.g. 

YouTube, podcasting); content (e.g. Pinterest, Instagram); social bookmarking (e.g. Diigo, 

Stumbleupon); social curation (e.g. Buffer, Storify); and wikis. 

 

 

 

 

 



Town of Cobalt                                                                                                                                Schedule   ‘A’  to  
Media Policy   By-Law No. 2015-011 

Scope  

2.1 The Town of Cobalt employees, elected officials and volunteers are expected to support the 

policies, programs and decisions of the Town of Cobalt and not publically criticize the Town or 

its partners. 

2.2 Information and postings about the Town of Cobalt on personal social media sites and other 

websites must comply with this policy and guidelines. 

 2.3 Without limiting the generality of this Policy, the use of Social Media is also subject to the 

terms and conditions of the Town of Cobalt Code of Conduct, Procedural Guidelines, the Ontario 

Municipal Act and the Collective Agreement. 

2.4 Town of Cobalt employees, volunteers and elected officials who participate in any (media or 

Social Media) activity that is in any way connected, directly or indirectly, to the Corporation of 

the Town of Cobalt and/or its business interests are required to comply with this Policy and will 

be held accountable for all of their media activity in this regard. Inappropriate conduct, as it 

relates to this Policy, may result in disciplinary action.  

 Authorization 

3.1. For the avoidance of any doubt, only the CAO and Mayor are authorized to make public 

statements on behalf of the Town of Cobalt on Social Media or elsewhere concerning the 

Municipality and its public and business interests. 

 3.2 Requests from other organizations to post information on the Town’s social media site shall 

be referred to the CAO. 

Rules 

Users must adhere to the following rules when participating in Social Media activity that is in any way 

connected, directly or indirectly, to the Town of Cobalt and/or its public and business interests: 

4.1 Ensure that you conduct yourself professionally at all times.   

4.2 Unless specifically advised otherwise by the CAO and/or Mayor, ensure that you clearly and 

prominently disclose: (i) that the comments, views, opinions and other materials expressed or 

posted by you are yours alone and do not necessarily represent or reflect those of the Town of 

Cobalt and (ii) if you have a vested interest in the particular subject matter. 

4.3 Ensure that you do not make any statements or otherwise post any materials that could 

harm the Town of Cobalt, its employees and other members of Council, its business interests or 

its reputation.  Without limiting the generality of the forgoing, this means that you must not 

make any statements or post any materials that: 

• are false, dishonest or misleading; 



Town of Cobalt                                                                                                                                Schedule   ‘A’  to  
Media Policy   By-Law No. 2015-011 

• are contradictory or in conflict with information provided by the Town of Cobalt 

(whether on the Town of Cobalt website, Facebook or other Media) 

• contain or otherwise express your personal political views (including, but not limited to, 

views of identifiable officials, elected or otherwise, including other members of council 

and governing bodies – 

• otherwise contain, include, discuss or involve, without limitation, any of the following: 

nudity (partial or otherwise); alcohol/drug consumption; sexual activity or sexual 

innuendo; crude, vulgar or offensive language and/or symbols; derogatory 

characterizations of any ethnic, racial, sexual, religious or other groups; content that 

endorses, condones and/or discusses any illegal, inappropriate or risky behavior or 

conduct; personal information of individuals; and/or any other content that is or could 

be considered inappropriate, disparaging, unsuitable or offensive, or 

• could give rise to any claims whatsoever, including, without limitation, claims of 

infringement, invasion of privacy or publicity, or infringe on any rights and/or interests 

of any third party. 

4.4. Ensure that you obtain consent from every identifiable person (and his/her parent/legal 

guardian if he/she is under the legal age of majority in their jurisdiction of residence) who is 

referenced or otherwise appears in your materials; 

4.5. Ensure that you do not post or otherwise disseminate any third party materials – 

including, but not limited to, materials that contain third party music, photographs, logos, trade-

marks or other copyrighted works – unless you have first obtained the express written consent 

from the owner of such materials. Never ‘tag’ Town of Cobalt staff in any materials (e.g. posts, 

photos, etc.).  

4.6. Ensure that you do not respond to comments related to The Town of Cobalt and/or its 

business interests that are received through media and  Social Media.  All such comments must 

be forwarded to the CAO, Town of Cobalt who will treat the comment appropriately. 

4.7. Ensure that you never disclose, whether deliberate or inadvertent, any confidential or 

non-public information that in any way relates, directly or indirectly, to the Town of Cobalt 

and/or its business interests (including, but not limited to, information relating to personnel 

matters, contracts, business opportunities, closed council meetings, legal matters). You must 

also never discuss any rumors that may involve the Town of Cobalt. Any disclosure or misuse of 

confidential information, whether deliberate or inadvertent, will be dealt with seriously.   

Do not post private or confidential information about fellow Councilors, Town of Cobalt 

employees or constituents. Do not discuss situations involving named, pictured or otherwise 

identifiable individuals without their permission. 

 



Town of Cobalt                                                                                                                                Schedule   ‘A’  to  
Media Policy   By-Law No. 2015-011 

Compliance 

5.1. Although the Town of Cobalt may, from time to time, monitor communications and 

Social Media for breaches of this Policy, it cannot identify every violation.  Users of Social Media 

should, therefore, never assume that any questionable online activity does not violate this 

Policy simply because they have not yet told them to stop engaging in it.  

Inappropriate content will be brought to the attention of the CAO Town of Cobalt to determine 

the appropriate course of action. 

5.2. Breaching this Policy while masquerading as someone else or under a pseudonym is not 

a defense and will instead be treated as an aggravating factor when the Town determines what 

action is warranted. Where a link can be made between a negative or offensive behavior  and 

the Town of Cobalt, even if not named directly, the perpetrator will be subject to disciplinary 

action.   

5.3. If any breach of this Policy results in legal action being taken against the Town of Cobalt, 

the Town in turn may, to the greatest extent permitted by law, seek to recover any damages 

that it had to pay and legal costs it incurred from those individuals(s) who breached this Policy.  

 

    



  

 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

AMENDED PROPOSAL – APRIL 13, 2015 

 

PROPOSED TOWN OF COBALT comments are highlighted in PURPLE  

PROPOSED CO-TEM PRO NATIVE NON-PROFIT HOUSING INC comments are in GREEN 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

April 7th response from Co-Tem 

March 26th discussion with Co-Tem 

March 23, 2015 Response from Town of Cobalt 

March 9, 2015 

Meeting Summary from March 4, 2015 

 

Re: Proposed Discussion Paper - Fraser House Project - 24 Prospect Avenue, Cobalt 

 

Background  

The Fraser Hotel located in Cobalt, Ontario is home to 15 affordable housing units created under 

the Affordable Housing Program (AHP 2009). The project received $1,517,500 in funding to 

renovate the building envelope and create 15 new affordable housing units managed by Co-Tem. 

The partners in this project are the Town of Cobalt, Cochrane-Temiskaming Pro-Native Non-Profit 

Housing (Co-Tem), District of Timiskaming Social Services Administration Board (DTSSAB) and 

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing (MMAH). 

Several discussions have been held since December 2013 to address concerns about the operation 

of the Co-Tem units and the shared costs by both the Town of Cobalt and Co-Tem. The discussions 

lead to the Town of Cobalt requesting Co-Tem prepare a business plan for consideration by their 

Council outlining their plan to address the Town of Cobalt’s concerns about operational issues and 

their proposal for shared costs. The business plan was submitted to the Town of Cobalt on July 21, 

2014. 

Due to the municipal election the Town of Cobalt was delayed in their response to Co-Tem’s 

business plan and was not able to circulate their response until the January 30, 2015. It was at this 

time that a face to face meeting was arranged by MMAH to discuss options for moving forward and 

reinforcing a commitment by all partners to the success of the project. 

At the end of the face to face discussions that took place on March 4, 2015 the following list of 

options that would be backdated as of January 1, 2015 for ongoing operations has been put on the 

table for discussion purposes with the understanding that both parties will take them back to their 

respective Board and Council for consideration. 

1. Taxes versus special charges 

Co-Tem referenced the Town of Cobalt’s By-law #2010-009 and requested consideration to 

be invoiced for taxes charged on the assessed value of Co-Tem leased premises.   

Based on By-law # 2014-23, the 2014 residential tax rate was 1.420958%. 



  

 

2 | P a g e  
 

Estimated Costs (Based on 2014 rate) 

   Assessed Taxes   $3,899.05 ($274,396. x 0.1420958) 

  Special Charges (one residence)  $   675.00 

 TOTAL    $4,574.05  

Presently Co-Tem pays special service charges of $675 X 15 units = $10,125 

Town of Cobalt:  ACCEPTED  
  Taxes versus special charges     Cost Cobalt 
                  Estimated costs (Based on 2014 rate)         $5550.95 
  Assessed Taxes          $3,899.05 ($274,396 x 0.1420958) 

                          Special Charges          $   675.00 (one residence)   
  TOTAL                         $4,574.05  
 

Co-Tem:  ACCEPTED 
 

2.  Water and sewage 
The Town of Cobalt has proposed to invoice Co-Tem for water and sewage charges on a 

prorated basis. Water and sewage will be charged on occupied units only. This should 

produce some savings for Co-Tem. This model is dependent on quarterly reporting from  

Co-Tem and pro-rated adjustments would be based on past quarter occupancy. 

 

Town of Cobalt:  ACCEPTED 

     Water and Sewer 

      Pro-rated amount based on occupancy reporting from Co-Tem. Cobalt will prepare a  

      report due at the end of each quarter in order to adjust rate for next quarter 

 

Co-Tem:  ACCEPTED    

  

3. Elevator shared costs  

The costs for the maintenance of the elevator will continue to be shared fifty-fifty by the 

Town of Cobalt and Co-Tem.  

 

Town of Cobalt:  ACCEPTED    Elevator Shared Cost 

    Status quo, shared 50-50 between Cobalt and Co-Tem   

 

Co-Tem:  ACCEPTED  

   

4. Union Gas shared costs 

The costs for Union Gas will continue to be shared between the Town of Cobalt, Co-Tem 

and The Bunker as follows: 

Town of Cobalt 42.5% 

Co-Tem  42.5% 

Bunker   15.0% 

Town of Cobalt:  ACCEPTED  

 



  

 

3 | P a g e  
 

 

Co-Tem:   COUNTER-PROPOSAL 

This is based on the following details currently available:  

 Co-Tem occupies 25% as identified initially determined by all parties therefore our 
percentage should be 25% not 42.5 %  

 all bills are taxed – if the Town receives tax relief on utilities this relief to be 
passed on to Co-Tem 
 

5. Hydro  

Hydro costs are billed individually to the parties as individual meters were installed in the 

beginning of the project. 

 

Town of Cobalt:  ACCEPTED  

Co-Tem:   ACCEPTED  

 

6. Security system and key fob system 

The Town of Cobalt will absorb the costs for the installation and continued maintenance of 

both the security system and the key fob system. This represents a total cost of $5759.14 

that has already been paid by the Town of Cobalt and will not be invoiced to Co-Tem. 

 

Town of Cobalt:  ACCEPTED  

 Cobalt to absorb $5,759.14 

 

Co-Tem:  ACCEPTED  

 

7. Live-in Building Custodian 

In response to the Town of Cobalt’s concerns for the absence of a custodial/maintenance 

staff person to maintain oversight, Co-Tem will implement a live-in custodian.  The role of the 

building custodian is still being developed and a job description will be created that will 

outline the job description.  

 

Co-Tem will have their live in building custodian clean and perform minor maintenance for 

the Cobalt portion of the building at no cost to the Town of Cobalt. 

 

The partners will work together to coordinate an appropriate job description and procedure 

for identifying repairs that require expertise beyond those identified in the job description.  

 

Town of Cobalt:  REJECTED 

 Cobalt would prefer to share the cost of the building custodian on a 50-50 basis. 

 We believe that having a custodian paid by one and incurring costs that will be born, 

by the other is a weak system. Sharing maintenance and repair costs mean that both 

parties are more likely to be proactive and to seek ways to keep costs down. 

 A live-in custodian was a suggestion that originated during discussions over the 

challenges associated with tenants, such as vandalism and smoking. It seems some 

of these issues have been addressed in an improved screening process. 



  

 

4 | P a g e  
 

  

 

Co-Tem:   COUNTER-PROPOSAL  

 Co –Tem agrees to share the cost of a building custodian on a fixed monthly 

cost to provide services to the Co-Tem controlled rental units.  This is based 

on the following duties: 

 Keep Apartment Units in both Cobalt and Co Tem areas in a clean and orderly 

condition.  

 Perform cleaning duties, such as cleaning floors, shampooing rugs, washing 

walls and glass, and removing rubbish.  

 Duties may include tending furnace and boiler, performing routine 

maintenance activities, notifying management of need for repairs, and cleaning 

snow or debris from sidewalks.  

 Monitor building security and safety by checking exits doors and to ensure 

that hazards are not created. 

 The building custodian is required to follow all guidelines under the “Landlord 

and Tenant Act” 

 (The Town of Cobalt to review and add any additional duties\items for 

consideration. Terms of employment, hourly rate, number of hours will be 

established in employment contract, established in consultation with the town 

of Cobalt )  

 Note : Co Tem will consider Mike Harrison if all parties are in agreement 

conditional on him agreeing to a new contract and monthly rate offered. 

 

Duties preformed above will be paid on a fixed monthly rate and paid on a 50-50 cost 

basis by both parties. 

These duties will be spelled out in a contract format based on the previous work 

carried out by the custodian (see list above).   All parties will review the contract to 

ensure that collective needs are being met to provide the services required for our 

rental units, 

We will also need to establish a procedure to deal with the following situations: 

1. Costs for additional work required by custodian: 

a. Co Tem pays for their costs for their units 

i. We will sign a fixed price agreement with custodian 

ii. Or get someone else to do the work 

b. Cobalt pays for their cost for their units 

i. Cobalt will sign a fixed price agreement with custodian 

ii. Or get someone else to do the work 

c. Common area – costs are shared equally 

i. We will both sign a fixed price agreement with custodian 

ii. Or get someone else to do the work 

2. Adding contracted duties to the job on an ongoing review process 



  

 

5 | P a g e  
 

a. This may require extra hours due to extra work 

3. Addition work required 

a. A cost will need to be established for overtime if required 

b. A fixed price system would need to be established 

 

4. Emergency Call Outs / On Call 

a. No heat calls in a unit 

b. Examples: Flooding, break-in. ETC  

 

8. Boiler Maintenance 

That Co-Tem will not be charged for annual maintenance or repairs to the Boiler system. 

 Town of Cobalt:  REJECTED 

 Cobalt would prefer to share the costs of the building maintenance, including the 
boiler, on a 50-50 basis.   

 Cobalt is working toward a service agreement on the boiler system in an effort to 
more proactively maintain the system and extend its useful like.  

 This system was purchased under the project and there have been a number of 
problems with it.  

 We believe that these problems have largely been addressed therefore the costs 
associated with maintaining the boiler will be reduced and should benefit both 
partners.  

 Co-Tem:  COUNTER PROPOSAL 

 Co-Tem is open to negotiating the Boiler System once debt has been 
recovered by October 2020 

9. Past Expenses/Costs 

One area that requires further clarification between both partners is the outstanding invoices prior to 

January 1, 2015.  

Based on discussion, the following has been proposed to address outstanding invoices: 

 As of February 19, 2015, the Town of Cobalt claims $22,973.37  

 The Town of Cobalt recognizes that $4,449.82 in invoice claims from Co-Tem. 

 This leaves an outstanding balance to the Town of Cobalt of $18,523.55. 

 The Town of Cobalt is prepared to further reduce this amount by $5,759.14 to reflect the 

elimination of the Security and Key Fob system.   

 This leaves outstanding amount of $12,764.41. 

 The Town of Cobalt is prepared to allow the $12,764.41 to be repaid over a five year period. 

Co-Tem requests: 

 Co-Tem is requesting updated summary invoice as at February 28, 2015 to ensure all 
invoices has been captured to this date and would benefit from a detailed listing 
(Union Gas charges not invoicing). 



  

 

6 | P a g e  
 

Questions and Clarifications 

1. Clarification of the outstanding invoices is requested to reflect costs to date.  

 Co-Tem is requesting updated summary invoice as at February 28, 2015 to ensure all 
 invoices has been captured to this date.  

2. The Town of Cobalt is open to having the building custodian take care of their side of the 
building however they will require more details of the role of this individual before 
agreeing. The Town of Cobalt has concerns about the lack of experience of the 
candidate.  Addressed 

3. The Town of Cobalt has expressed concerns that over the 50 year partnership, key 
structural and physical plant components of the Fraser House, may need replacement 
rather than maintenance.  Cobalt wants the partners to discuss a fair mechanism to 
address these areas.  Addressed  

Next Steps:  March 15, 2015  

 It was agreed that comments discussed and now identified on this document would be 

provided to the District of Timiskaming Social Services Administration Board (DTSSAB) and 

copied to all by Friday March 13, 2015. 

 DTSSAB will provide consolidated discussion documents on Monday March 16th, 2015 and 

circulate to everyone. 

 Co-Tem and the Town of Cobalt agree to review the final discussion document with 

representatives of respective Board/Council during the week of March 16-20, 2015. 

 Co-Tem and Town of Cobalt to provide their formal position on the discussion document by 

Monday March 23, 2015. 

 The group will reconvene on Wednesday March 25, 2015 (via teleconference or face-to-

face, as deemed appropriate). 

Next Steps:  March 30, 2015  

By end of day April 1st, Co-Tem to circulate the amended Proposal Paper to applicable Board 

Members and identify (different colour/highlighting) an amendments to reflect the formal position 

to be counter-offered to the Town of Cobalt. 

 By end of day April 2nd, counter-proposal will be forwarded to the Town of Cobalt for their 

review and response. 

 By end of day April 8th the Town of Cobalt to respond back all parties on formal position and 

verify if and when a council endorsement to this agreement can be reached. 

Next Steps:  April 13, 2015 

 Circulate Co-Tem counter-proposal to the Town by end of day April 13th 

 By end of day April 24th, the Town of Cobalt to respond back to all parties on formal position. 

 Proposed all partner discussion/face-to-face meeting April 28th.  

 



  

 

7 | P a g e  
 

In conclusion, everyone at the meeting expressed commitment to the continued viability of the 

Fraser House Project.  In doing so, will require concessions from both sides and a willingness to 

work together as partners.  It is hoped this discussion paper will provide the framework to help 

partners re-establish a healthy working relationship. 


	Agenda for April 28, 2015
	Minutes for Regular Meeting April 7, 2015
	Minutes for the Special Meeting of Council (ARENA) April 21, 2015
	Minutes for Special Meeting April 21, 2015
	List of Attendees
	Cobalt Arena Review
	Community Conversation

	Energy East Pipeline Presentation-Cobalt-2015-04-28
	Slide Number 1
	Energy East Pipeline in Brief
	The more you know about oil, the more Energy East makes sense
	Truck and Tanker Equivalent
	Slide Number 5
	Project Timeline
	Re-purposing gas to oil service: �We’ve done it before
	Ontario Engagement
	FAQ #1:�Protecting Water
	Prevention and Protection
	FAQ #2: �Safety and Emergency Response
	Slide Number 12
	FAQ #3:�Economic Benefits
	FAQ #4: �Gas Capacity & Domestic Market Supply
	Gas to Eastern Canada
	We Are in the Business of Delivering Energy Safely
	Slide Number 17
	Who is TransCanada?�
	Our Profile in Ontario
	Independent Review: �“Minimal Impact”
	Independent Review: �Energy East “Desirable”
	Support Across Ontario
	Support Across Ontario
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25

	2015 Rent Increase
	Schedule 15-09 April 28
	CORRESPONDENCE FOR COMMENT
	Correspondence for Council Comment - April 28, 2015
	CORRESPONDENCE FOR INFORMATION
	Correspondence for Council Information - April 28, 2015
	By-law 2015-011 Media Policy
	Co-Tem Response to Cobalt's Response of March 4th

